ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 14, 2013
3:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Higgins, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Lora Reinbold
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N&( S) :

Al aska State Medical Board

Kevin Luppen - Wasilla
Casey MIlar - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PRESENTATI ON:. AFFORDABLE CARE ACT
- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER
KEVI N LUPPEN, Appoi nt ee
Al aska State Medical Board
Wasi |l a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the State Medica

Boar d.

KATHLEEN ( CASEY) M LLAR, Appoi ntee

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- March 14, 2013



Al aska State Medical Board

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as an appointee to the State Medical
Boar d.

DEBORAH ERI CKSON, Executive Director

Al aska Health Care Conm ssion

O fice of the Comm ssioner

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed a Power Poi nt , "Qvervi ew
Affordable Care Act," during discussion of the Affordable Care
Act .

JOSH APPLEBEE, Heal th Policy

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the presentation on the
Affordable Care Act.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:33:43 PM

CHAIR PETE HIGA NS called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3:33 p. m
Representatives H ggins, Reinbold, Pruitt, and Keller were
present at the call to order. Represent ati ves Nageak, Seaton

and Tarr arrived as the neeting was in progress.

CONFI RMATI ON HEARI N&( S) :
Al aska State Medical Board

3:34:31 PM

CHAIR H G@ NS announced that the first order of business would
be the confirmation hearings for the Al aska State Medical Board.
He clarified that signing the confirmation commttee report did
not reflect the intent of any nenber of the comrmittee to vote
for or against an individual in any further sessions for the
pur pose of confirmation.

3:35:19 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- March 14, 2013



KEVI N LUPPEN, Appointee, Al aska State Medical Board, detailed
hi s background as a physician assistant for nore than 30 years.
He said that he first came to Alaska in 1975, as a nenber of the

Air Force. He reported that he had worked in various areas of
Al aska, including the Aleutians and the North Slope, for both
corporations and Native organizations. He expressed that his

interest for the State Medical Board had derived from his work
in the bush, in order to ensure that there was quality nedica
delivery in the rural areas.

3:37:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked what was the biggest concern for
the future of health care in Alaska and how did he plan to
address this.

MR. LUPPEN, in response to Representative Reinbold, said that
there were constant challenges for attracting and naintaining
quality providers, especially in the bush. He detailed that
many of the issues were for the length of the contract, |ack of
support, and time off. He opined that the key was to draw
quality people and to address a way to keep them on-site. He
declared that the initial draw to Al aska was salary, especially
for md-level providers, but that this was no |onger the case.
He declared the necessity to attract quality providers, to give
them the necessary support, and to ensure they "are vetted and
quality people to deliver health care in the rural areas.”

3:39:04 PM

CHAIR HIGA NS asked what work M. Luppen had done wth the
state.

MR. LUPPEN, in response, said that he had worked in the eastern
Al eutians region, southcentral Alaska, and other areas around
t he state.
3:39: 44 PM

CHAIR HH GA@ NS asked about the work M. Luppen did with the oi
and gas industry.

MR. LUPPEN, in response, stated that he was a health care
provi der and had served on |ocal health boards in the Al eutians,

assisting with delivery of the best health care system I n
response to Chair H ggins, he said that he was a physician
assistant, licensed in the State of Al aska.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- March 14, 2013



3:41: 06 PM
CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony.
3:41: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK noved to advance the confirmation for
Kevin Luppen from the House Health and Social Services Standing
Commttee to the joint session of the House and Senate for
consi derati on. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced.

3:42: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that each nenber's signature on
the commttee report would in no way reflect the nenber's vote
during the joint floor session.

3:42: 33 PM
CHAIR HGA NS noved to the next confirmation

KATHLEEN (CASEY) M LLAR, Appointee, Alaska State Medical Board

expl ained that her choice to serve on the State Mdical Board
had arisen from the reconmendati on of another board nenber, who
had suggested that she would be a good addition to the board.
She stated that her first term on the board had been a great
experience, and she opined that it was inportant to have a
public menber on the board. She declared the inportance for
board | ongevity, hence her willingness to serve a second term

3:44:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked about her current enploynment as a
nutritionist for the Anchorage School District.

M5. MLLAR in response, said that she had been wth the
district for five years, but was no longer wth the school
district. She stated that she was now running a store in
Anchor age.

3:44: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD, expressing her concern wth school

nutrition, stated that there had been hone cooked neals during
her attendance at public school. She enquired about the |ack of

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- March 14, 2013



enphasis on "fresh, good quality food in our cafeterias in our
schools,” and asked Ms. MIlar for her thoughts.

M5. M LLAR expressed her agreenent, stating that it "was a
constant frustration,” and that the school food was "sonmewhat of
a governnent subsidy, and so it is a little bit out of the
control of the individual schools unless they are a private

school . " She allowed that the food had gotten better, as the
soda machine drinks had been replaced with water and vitamn
energy drinks. She pointed out that there were now fresh

vegetables and fresh fruits being served, especially at the
provi si onal school s.

3:46: 46 PM

CHAIR H GA NS asked how often the State WMedical Board nenbers
met during her first termon the board.

M5. MLLAR replied that the board nenbers net four tines
annually, wth teleconferences nore often, if necessary. She
decl ared, as she had no nedical background, that it took her "a
while to get up to speed" and to feel confortable. She reported
that the health care providers on the board were very
supportive, and she reiterated that |longevity 1is inportant
because the board is still addressing issues that precede her
time on the board. Therefore, having sone history of what has
happened is really valuable. She said that the Federation of
State Medical Boards was al so helpful, as it net once a year and
had sessions for public nenbers. She declared that this had
been wvery valuable to her for learning the duties and
responsibilities of a public nenber.

3:49:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD suggested that a hone economics or a
culinary arts program could help the school [unch prograns, and
she asked Ms. MIlar for any suggestions.

M5. M LLAR expressed her agreenent, and noted that University of
Al aska Anchorage (UAA) had a culinary department which taught
cooking and supplied neals. She offered her belief that there
were cost effective ways to offer the program in the public
schools, and she suggested that, as nore attention was brought
for the lack of nutrition to food currently being served, this
woul d "bring new ideas to light."

3:51: 29 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 5- March 14, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE TARR, noting that Ms. M| lar was a volunteer host
for weekly staff neetings for "Young Life Al aska," asked about
her conmunity service activities. She questioned whether sone
of the "fairly controversial practices by the organization,"”
whi ch included requirenments of staff and the statenment of non-
negoti ables, would interfere with Ms. MIlar's unbiased service
on the State Medical Board.

M5. MLLAR said that although her son was the Anchorage area
director for Young Life, she did not see how that would be a
conflict or cause any adverse effect to the health and nedica
comunity. She asked Representative Tarr for a nore specific
gquestion which she woul d answer.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR pointed out that there were difficult
decisions to be nade by the State Medical Board, and she
expressed appreciation that Ms. MIlar had publicly stated that
there woul d not be any conflicts.

M5. MLLAR replied that she did not see how there could be any
conflicts, pointing out that she was only one voice on the
voti ng board.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked Ms. MIllar if her son was Trevor
MIllar, who she declared to be "a fabul ous individual and has
been an incredible role nodel to ny son.” She shared her
ent husi asm for Young Life.

3:54:18 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony. Hearing none, he cl osed
public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to advance the confirmation for
Casey MIllar from the House Health and Social Services Standing
Commttee to the joint session of the House and Senate for
consi derati on. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced.

3:54:58 PM
The committee took an at-ease from3:54 p.m to 3:57 p.m

Presentati on: Affordabl e Care Act

3:57:51 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- March 14, 2013



CHAIR H GA NS announced that the next order of business woul d be
a presentation on the Affordable Care Act.

3:58: 59 PM

DEBORAH  ERI CKSCN, Executive Director, Al aska Health Care
Comm ssion, Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and
Social Services, said that she would talk about the highlights
of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act during the
Power Poi nt , "Overview Affordable Care Act,"” [Included in
nmenbers' packets] and would ask that M. Applebee answer any
guestions regarding the interpretation and inplenmentation of the
act in Al aska.

4:00: 00 PM

JOSH APPLEBEE, Health Policy, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Health and Social Services, said that he would
appreciate for the commttee to hold its questions until the end
of the presentation.

4:00: 18 PM

M5. ERICKSON introduced slide 3, "Federal Health Reform Law, "
stating that this mjor law was enacted in March 2010. She
expl ai ned that there were 10 Titles wthin the act,
acknow edgi ng that many people had commented that the act was
nore about health insurance reform than health care reform as
nost of the mmjor provisions addressed the expansion of health
care coverage and insurance. She said that the overview would
center on the major functional pieces of the act.

4:02: 09 PM

M5. ERICKSON noved on to slide 4, "Health Care Coverage
Strategies,"” a graph illustrating the strategies for health care
coverage, which she listed: private insurance market refornms,
i ndi vi dual and enpl oyer mandates, subsidies for individuals and
smal | businesses, a health insurance exchange to provide an
el ectronic marketplace for insurance shopping and purchasing,
and the Medi cai d expansi on.

4:03: 07 PM

M5. ERICKSON directed attention to slide 5, "Individual Mndate
& Subsidies,”" and stated that the individual nmandate required

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- March 14, 2013



all individuals to have a qualified health plan, or pay a tax
penal ty. She relayed that this requirenent would take effect
for the 2014 tax year, after being phased in over three years,
and that the penalty was either $95 per person per year, or 1
percent of the household income, whichever was (greater

increasing to $695 per person per year, or 2.5 percent of

househol d income, by 2016. She noted that the penalty for
children was half that of adults and that there was a cap on
famly penalties. She reported that there were exenptions,

including a religious exenption; an Anerican Indian and Al aska
Native exenption, as there was an assunption of access to Indian
Health Service benefits; and, a financial hardship exenption.
She declared that there were subsidies and federal funding to

assi st wth the purchase  of i nsurance for | ow-i ncome
i ndi viduals, those people with incones between 133 percent and
400 percent of the federal poverty |evel. She noted that the

anount of subsidy varied between regions and i ncone | evels.
4:05:22 PM

M5. ERICKSON pointed to slide 6, "Enployer Mndate & Subsidy,"”
and explained that the enployer mandate applied to businesses
that had 50 or nore full tinme enployees, working 30 hours or
nore each week. She noted that the associated penalty could
apply even to a business that did supply insurance. The way
that this provision had been worded, the enployer that did not
of fer coverage, nust pay a penalty of $2000 per full tine
enpl oyee per year after an exenption for the first 30 enpl oyees.
She said that this was only if one or nore enployees received a
subsi dy through the exchange. She noted that an individual was
not eligible for a subsidy if there was insurance coverage,
which net certain standards, available through their enployer.
She reported that an enployee's share of the insurance prem um
could not exceed 9.5 percent of their household incone. She
said there was also a subsidy for businesses with 25 or fewer
full time enployees, although there were caveats with this, as
wel | . She offered exanples of how different provisions of the
Affordable Care Act applied in different ways, depending on the
size of the business.

4:08:19 PM

M5. ERICKSON shared slide 7, "Health Insurance Exchange," the
el ectronic market place for purchasing insurance. She said that
t hese exchanges were to be a state-based electronic site, but
that multiple states could together form a health insurance
exchange. She explained that there was an opt-out provision

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- March 14, 2013



which required a federal exchange for any state that did not set
up an exchange. She said that the insurance exchange was to be

operational by October, 2013, in order to enroll people for
2014. One requirement was for the state exchange program to
have an interface with the state Medicaid for eligibility and
enrol | nent. She noted that the health insurance exchanges had

to be sel f-sustaining by 2015.
4:10: 07 PM

M5. ERI CKSON reviewed slide 8, "Medicaid Expansion," explaining
that the state had the option to expand eligibility to Mdicaid
for those individuals who had inconme under 138 percent of the
federal poverty level, and that the federal governnent would pay
100 percent of the nedical claim portion until 2017, at which
time the state share would phase in to a maxi rum of 10 percent
by 2020. She referenced the recent Suprene Court decision that
had allowed states to make the Medicaid expansion an option, as
it had been determined to be overly coercive by the federal
government to require the expansion. She affirnmed that,
although the federal governnment clarified that a partial
expansi on of Medicaid was not allowed, there was no deadline for
t he expansi on decision, so states had the option to discontinue
the expansion at a later date. She nentioned that the |aw had
shifted the nethodology for eligibility determnation to
nodi fied adjusted gross incone, which would have a significant
impact on all the state Medicaid progranms, in 2014. She
observed that states were required to coordinate eligibility
determ nation with the Health |Insurance Exchange.

4:13: 24 PM

M5. ERICKSON indicated slide 9, "Paynent Reform"™ and spoke
about provisions which were intended to drive reform for the way
health care services were delivered. She listed nany
provi sions, sone of which were changes for Medicare paynent
services, and sone denonstration projects for Medicaid prograns.
She nentioned there were also sone multi-payer initiatives which
encouraged states to partner the Medicaid and the Medicare
prograns with private insurance conpanies. These paynent
refornrs were designed to drive the usual fee-for-service
mechani smtoward a paynent for outcones and val ue.

4:14: 42 PM

M5. ERI CKSON considered slide 10, "How the Act Pays for Itself,”
and spoke about the savings through paynent reform provisions,

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- March 14, 2013



and fraud and abuse provisions. She noted that there were
l[imts to the increase of Medicare rates, as well as a series of
"New Fees & Taxes," slide 11. She said that nost of the fees
and taxes would be taking effect in 2013. She listed the tax on
indoor tanning, and the annual fee on the pharnmaceutical
i ndustry as already having been inplenented; whereas, the tax on
sonme nedi cal devices, and the Medicare payroll tax increase for
high inconme individuals and unearned inconme would all take
effect in 2013. She reported that an $8 billion annual tax on
the health insurance industry would take effect in 2014; and, in
2018, an excise tax on high value enployer sponsored insurance
pl ans would al so go into effect.

4:17: 05 PM

M5. ERI CKSON provided slide 12, "Al aska I|npact 2019," which was
calculated by an Institute of Social and Econom c Research
(I SER) study for the net increase in health care spending by the
federal governnent, and the high |evel economic inpact, up to
$700 mllion in Al aska. She noted that the federal governnent

woul d al so collect nmore than $500 million in taxes in Al aska.
4:18: 37 PM

M5. ERICKSON indicated slides 13 - 14, "Legal Challenges &
Political Realities,” noting the significance of the Suprene
Court Ruling in June, 2012, as it upheld the constitutionality
of the individual mandate, but limted the Medicaid expansion

and nade it an option for states. She offered an anecdote about
the roles of state governnments in inplenentation of the
Affordabl e Care Act and the subsequent political ramfications.

4:21:32 PM

M5. ERICKSON furnished slide 15, "Legal Challenges & Politica
Realities,” and stated that the federal budget constraints which
resulted in the Fiscal diff and the Mirch 1 sequester were
having sone effect on the Affordable Care Act. She said that
the Co-Qp program a consuner operated non-profit health
insurance plan, had its not-yet-awarded available funding

elimnated, and that Title VIII, the CLASS Act which created a
new, public, long term care insurance program was also
r epeal ed. She listed other exanples of provisions which

affected the health care industry with direct inpacts to the
Af fordabl e Care Act.

4:22:58 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- March 14, 2013



M5. ERICKSON presented slide 16, "Federal Inplenentation to
Date," and highlighted that four new federal offices had been
established, as well as the establishment of new boards,
conmi ssions, conmttees, and regul ations. She noted that many
grants had al so been awar ded.

M5. ERI CKSON shared slides 17 - 19, "Summary of Decenber 2012 to
March 2013 Updates,"” which summarized the changes, inpacts,
regul ations, and guidance docunents during that tinme period.
Concluding with slides 20 - 21, "Tineline," she highlighted that
a nunmber of private insurance nmarket reforns had been
i npl enented in 2010, and that the grants and planning activities
were al so quickly avail abl e. She reported that the cornerstone
pieces of the Affordable Care Act, Medicaid expansion, the
Heal t h I nsurance Exchange, and the nmandates and subsidies, would
all take effect in 2014, while additional provisions would
continue to take effect all the way into 2018.

4:26:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the Affordable Care
Act was dealing nore with insurance, and not as nmuch with health

care. He asked if the overview enphasis of the Al aska Health
Care Comm ssion had been for access and paynent, instead of
heal t h.

M5. ERICKSON, in response, said that the commssion had
attenpted to track all of the provisions. She directed
attention to the <conmission's website, which contained a
detailed overview of the Affordable Care Act, as well as

provisions in which the state and health care providers had
parti ci pat ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that the Affordable
Care Act was sinply about paying for access to care. He asked
if there was anything on the website which tal ked about health.

M5. ERICKSON replied that the website listed a nore specific
overview for the provisions to the Affordable Care Act which she
had not discussed, as well as nore detailed information about
specific inplenentation in Al aska.

4:29: 09 PM

MR. APPLEBEE said that several divisions within the Departnent
of Health and Social Services were involved with the overview,

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- March 14, 2013



to ensure focus on all the different sections of the Affordable
Care Act.

4:29:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked for an explanation to the $2.8
billion annual fee on the pharmaceutical industry, which would
i ncrease over tine.

MR. APPLEBEE asked to clarify whether Representative Reinbold
was asking about the intent of the federal governnent to
i ncrease taxes, noting that this gave the federal government the
ability to pay for the Affordable Care Act.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD offered her belief that "driving the
cost just ends up spreading it around nore. To ne, | nean, it
seens 100 percent illogical." She asked about the collection
process for this tax, and she opined that it was driving up the
cost of pharnmaceuti cal s.

MR. APPLEBEE stated that nany people had expressed agreenent
that the rising cost of health care was the primary concern,
along with access and the ability to deliver the right care at
the right tine.

4:31:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT asked how much had been collected fromthe
10 percent sales tax on indoor tanning, and whether this had net
t he revenue expectation.

MR. APPLEBEE replied that he did not know, as inplenmentation of
the Affordable Care Act was still in its early stages. He
declared that there were still many questions to be answered.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT expressed his concern that assunptions had
been made by the federal governnment regarding the anounts of
noney available to pay for the Affordable Care Act. He asked
how the state could be assured of federal funding to provide for
this requirenent.

MR. APPLEBEE opined that this was the crux for the decision
making by the State of Alaska, as the future federal funding
| evel s were unknown.

4:34: 04 PM

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- March 14, 2013



CHAIR HIGA NS, stating that the governor was now going to agree
to Medicaid expansion, asked for an explanation to this
expansi on.

MR. APPLEBEE clarified that the governor had stated on February
28, 2013, that he would not submt any plans concerning Medicaid
expansion to the Legislature. He shared that the next decision
point by the governor would be during the budget submittal in
Decenber . He reported that HHSS had been discussing the inpact
from Medicaid expansion for services provided and costs. He
decl ared that the Conm ssioner of HHSS had stated that he wanted
to make the correct decision, and, as this was not a sinple
answer, it would require a ot of tine and anal ysis.

MR. APPLEBEE explained that Medicaid expansion under the
Affordable Care Act neant that Medicaid services would be
provided to all patients with an income level up to 138 percent
of the federal poverty level (FPL). He clarified that this
woul d be offered to everyone under that incone |level, and not
just to famlies with children or pregnant wonen, as in the

past . He clarified that the newy eligible population were
t hose who were not currently enrolled but would be eligible with
this expansion. He described another eligible group which he
deened as the woodwork effect. These were people who were
currently eligible for Mdicaid, but had not enrolled. | f they
enrolled after the Medicaid expansion, they would still only be

covered under the current participation rate, which was about 50
percent of cost to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that those who would be
covered under the "woodwork effect” were only those who were
currently eligible but had not yet applied.

MR. APPLEBEE expressed agreenent that those who would currently
qualify would also qualify under the expansion, but for a |ower
federal reinbursenent rate.

4:39:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there was any deadline for the
Medi cai d expansi on.

MR. APPLEBEE expl ai ned that the Supreme Court ruling to make the
Medi caid expansion decision optional had clarified that there
was not a deadline for expansion. He pointed out that the 100
percent federal reinbursement was only effective from January
2014 through Decenber 2016. If a state decided to enroll at a

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- March 14, 2013



|ater date, it would forego reinbursenent for any tine already
| apsed.

4:40: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there were nore tal ks about bl ock
grants to the states as an option to the Medicaid expansion. He
declared that the state was "far nore capable of figuring out
who needs it than the federal regulations that are gonna cone
fromafar.” He comrented that although the state could legally
rescind after its expansion of Medicaid, this would be a very
contentious political decision, and would not really be an
option for the |egislature. He asked if the state would have
nore control of the noney fromthe expansi on of Medi cai d.

MR. APPLEBEE replied that the Suprene Court decision for the
option of Medicaid had raised the national conversation for
bl ock grants to pay for entitlenent prograns.

4:42: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NAGEAK asked to clarify the funding of Medicaid
expansion for three years.

MR. APPLEBEE replied that the 100 percent federal reinbursenent
for Medicaid expansion would be offered for the three cal endar
years of 2014, 2015, and 2016. He explained that any delay for
state expansion would not receive an extension, and that a
sliding scale of reinbursenents would begin in the cal endar year
of 2017.

4:44:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if there was a calculation for the
10 percent cost to the state after the Medicaid expansion.

MR. APPLEBEE replied that DHSS was working on the actuari al
analysis, and he cited several studies, including an estimte
and analysis by the Urban Institute. He pointed out that DHSS
was reviewing all the possible infornmation to nake its deci sion.
He offered to provide the range of cost, although he did not
know whet her the exact cost woul d be avail abl e.

4:45:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR cited her discussions with small business
owners for their needs and shared that she had "warnmed up to the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- March 14, 2013



Affordable Care Act" after having initial concerns. She
reported on a docunentary about the inplenmentation and drafting
of the Affordable Care Act, and the involvenent of the
pharmaceutical industry. She announced that 138 percent of the
federal poverty level in Al aska would be about $40,000 for a
famly of four. She pointed out that Arkansas had now applied
for a waiver to Mdicaid expansion, and was planning to use
those funds to buy private health insurance for the popul ation
that would have been covered by the expansion. She asked if
this was an idea for Al aska to consider.

MR. APPLEBEE, in response, shared that he had had nunerous
conversations with the Director of Health and Social Services in
Arkansas, since its announcenent, and had asked Arkansas to
share any details. He clarified that currently there was only a
verbal agreenent wth the federal governnment and not yet
anything in witing, as the details were still being worked out.
He opined that, should this be a sign of increased federal

flexibility, that Al aska would be very excited to review the
potential opportunities. He observed that currently the federa

government had stated that this was an all or nothing
proposi tion.

4:48:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, noting that there were two hospitals in
his district, stated that they were supportive for Medicaid
expansion, as they were cost shifting for an increase to those
patients who had insurance. He asked that should the Medicaid
expansi on be rescinded, would only Al askans bear the cost shift,
or would treatnment be withheld until people were extrenely sick,
with its correspondi ng cost increase.

MR. APPLEBEE asked to clarify whether Representative Seaton was
referring to the Medicaid expansion, wth a subsequent pul
back. He offered his agreenment with Representative Keller, that
it wuld be a far easier decision to expand Mdicaid than to
rescind at a |ater date.

4:50: 30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that his conversations had been

with those people who were doing all the paying, and not wth
t hose who woul d be recipients of the Medi caid expansion.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -15- March 14, 2013



MR. APPLEBEE replied that the decision would require a review of
all the information, as "the Medicaid program touches a |ot of
what we do in the state in terns of health care delivery."

4:51: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD, referencing slide 11, "New Fees &
Taxes," offered her belief that these fees and taxes were
"hurting successful coupl es, busi nesses, and really gonna
penalize those older people who need nedical devices." She
stated that she had never Iliked the Affordable Care Act, and
that she was "al arned. |"'m getting nmuch colder towards this
plan than | ever inmagined." She asked if all the fees were
being paid to the federal governnent, "so this is just a,
basically, just a grab of noney and power and control of
sonmething that's so powerfully inportant to us.” She asked to

clarify if the federal legislators had been exenpted, and she
requested to know all of the exenptions fromthe plan.

MR. APPLEBEE, in response to Representative Reinbold, stated
that the taxes were being paid to the federal government. He
offered to respond with the Iist of exenptions.

4:53: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT asked to clarify that an additional 52,000
Al askans woul d be covered by the Affordable Care Act. He asked
if the assessnent was correct that many conpanies would cease to
provide, or limt, [health care] insurance.

MR. APPLEBEE, in response, said that it was unclear for how
people would act or how prem uns would change. He cautioned
that there were many pieces still to be clarified before any
such statenents, and he offered his belief that the Affordable
Care Act assuned that businesses, and business owners, wanted to
continue to offer health insurance coverage.

4:55:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT asked how the state and federal health
care plans would be affected, and he opined that these would be
defined as "cadillac" plans. He asked for the probability that
states would nmerge plans in order to cut costs.

MR. APPLEBEE, clarifying that this was for state enployee pl ans,

said that these plans would not be inpacted, as the intent of
the Affordable Care Act was to maintain existing insurance and

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- March 14, 2013



add to them observing that the "cadillac" plans were not
affected until 2018. He opined that there would not be any
change for state enployees, "certainly not in the short term™
as nost of the changes in Alaska were for the 17 percent of
uni nsured Al askans.

4:58: 02 PM
CHAIR HHGA@ NS suggested - as there were still many questions and
only a short amount of tine - that the presenters return at a
| ater date.
4:58:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, asking about eligibility, requested to
know the incone for a traditional famly of four in Al aska at
138 percent of the federal poverty |evel.

M5. ERICKSON expressed his agreenment with the earlier figures
from Representative Tarr that the current federal poverty inconme
guideline for a famly of four in Al aska was $40, 627.

CHAIR HI GG NS added that this figure was equivalent to about 70
percent of the average incone in Al aska. He asked that the
presenters return at an agreed upon date to continue the
di scussion with the commttee.

MR. APPLEBEE offered for any conmttee nenber to contact him
wi th any questi ons.

5:01: 22 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adj ourned at 5:01 p.m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -17- March 14, 2013



